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Mary Jo O’'Neill #005924

Sally C. Shanley #012251

Sandra J. Padegimas #011652

Katherine Kruse #019167

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Phoenix District Office

3300 North Central Avenue, Suite 690

Phoenix, Arizona 85012-2504

Telephone: (602) 640-5061
sandra.padegimas@eeoc.gov

Attorneys for Applicant
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA

)
Equal Employment Opportunity )
Commission, )
)
Applicant, ) AFFIDAVIT OF SUSAN L. GRACE
) IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION
V. ) FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
) WHY ADMINISTRATIVE
FedEx Corporation, ) SUBPOENA SHOULD NOT
) BE ENFORCED
Respondent. )
)
)
STATE OF ARIZONA
SS.

COUNTY OF MARICOPA

I, Susan L. Grace, being duly sworn, upon my oath state as follows:

1. | am the Deputy District Director of the Phoenix District Office of the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"). District Director Chester V.
Bailey and | are responsible for the operations of the office, including the
investigation of charges of employment discrimination.

2. The Phoenix District Office is responsible for investigating charges that
employers have engaged in employment practices made unlawful by Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VII"), as amended, 42 U.S.C. 8 2000e et seq.
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3. Among the EEOC's investigative files in the Phoenix District Office is
Charge No. 350-2005-00982 filed against the FedEx Company (“FedEx” or
“Respondent”) by Charging Party Tyrone Merritt.

4. | state the following based on my personal examination of the file in Mr.
Merritt's charge of race discrimination.

5. On December 2, 2004, the EEOC's Phoenix District Office received a
charge from Tyrone Merritt filed under Title VII. In his charge, Mr. Merritt alleges
that Respondent discriminated against him as part of a pattern and practice of
discriminating against African-American and Latino employees by failing to promote
them in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et.
seq. Mr. Merritt alleges that FedEXx requires passage of a Basic Skills Test ("BST"),
a cognitive ability test, for promotion from the entry-level position of Handler to
positions of Customer Service Agent, Ramp Transporter Driver ("RTD”) or Courier.
Mr. Merritt further alleges that he took and failed the BST. He also alleges that the
BST has a statistically-significant adverse impact on African Americans and Latinos
and disqualifies them for the jobs listed above, for which they are otherwise qualified.
Merritt also alleges that he applied for promotion to other positions, including
dispatcher and ramp agent, but FedEx gave those positions to similarly-situated
white employees. In addition, he alleges that he was subjected to harsher discipline
than that imposed on similarly-situated white employees. Mr. Merritt further alleges
that FedEx has discriminatorily denied him fair compensation due to its racially-
biased disciplinary evaluation policies and practices. Like the allegations regarding
the BST, Mr. Merritt made all of these allegations on behalf of himself and similarly
situated African American and Latino employees. Finally, Mr. Merritt alleges, on
behalf of himself only, that he was denied leave without pay while other white
employees were permitted to take leave without pay. (Attach. 1, Charge).

6. On December 10, 2004, the EEOC mailed a copy of Mr. Merritt’s charge

and Notice of the Charge of Discrimination to the Respondent and began to
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investigate whether Title VII had been violated. (Attach. 2, Notice of Charge).

7. OnJune 29, 2005, Mr. Merritt filed a supplement to his charge, alleging
that he once again took and failed the BST on May 24, 2005. In his Supplement to
Charge, he alleges that he would have applied, and received, one of the Courier
positions available since the test was administered, if he had not failed the test. He
also alleges that he was denied other promotions given to white applicants. He
continued to bring the charge on behalf of himself and similarly situated African
American and Latino FedEx employees. (Attach. 3, Supplement to Charge).

8. On October 6, 2005, counsel for Mr. Merritt requested a Notice of Right
to Sue, in order to add Mr. Merritt as a representative plaintiff in a class action suit
challenging FedEx’s use of the BST in FedEx’s Western Region. The EEOC issued
a Notice of Right to Sue on October 20, 2005. In the Notice, the EEOC also
informed both Mr. Merritt and FedEx that the EEOC would continue to process the
charge. The charge has never been dismissed. (Attach. 4, Notice of Right to Sue).

9. As part of the EEOC’s investigation, the EEOC investigator issued a
subpoena to obtain information about FedEx’s computerized files. The subpoena
received by Respondent had a return date of February 24, 2006. (Attach. 5,
Subpoena PHX-06-18).

10. On February 10, 2006, a courtesy copy of the Subpoena was also
faxed to Respondent’s counsel, who by letter dated February 14, 2006, requested
an extension of time to respond to the subpoena up to and including March 24,
2006. By letter dated February 16, 2006, the EEOC granted Respondent’s request
for an extension of time. However, the EEOC received a timely Petition to Revoke
or Modify Subpoena (Attach. 6, Petition to Revoke).

11. On March 20 2006, Respondent received the EEOC's Final
Determination on Petition to Revoke or Modify Subpoena. The Commission denied
Respondent’s Petition to Revoke or Modify Subpoena and directed the Respondent

to produce the evidence requested within 10 days of receipt of the Final
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Determination. (Attach. 7, Final Determination).

12.  On March 23, 2006, the EEOC received a letter from Respondent
requesting reconsideration of the Final Determination. The EEOC responded to this
letter on March 29, 2008. Again, FedEx was asked to comply with the directions of
the Final Determination and advised that if it failed to do so, the Commission would
have no choice but to seek judicial enforcement of its administrative subpoena.
(Attach. 8, Robertson letter, and Attach. 9, Padegimas letter).

13. As of the date of this Affidavit, Respondent has failed to provide EEOC
with the information requested in Subpoena No. PHX-06-18.

14. Respondent’s failure to respond to the administrative subpoena has
delayed and hampered the investigation of Mr. Merritt's charge that raises class

allegations of race discrimination.

DATE: 5/7,3 iy WwMKIM—

Slsan L. Grace
Deputy District Director

r":‘;‘\;. OFFICIAL SEAL "'i
£ BILLIE J. THUDE

(¥ JE] Notary Public - State of Artzong
NEZ/ MARICOPA COUNTY :
Comm. Expires May 20, 2009

Subscribed and sworn before me this

2.3 day of May, 2006.

Notary Publicﬂ )

State of Arizona, County of Maricopa
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CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION [ k)

CHARGE NUMBIR
This torm s sitected by the Privacy Act of 1974; See Privacy Act Statement hetore completing Ll Fepa

this form W EOC —‘);G J 0[; “-).‘ O(\ ‘/ g \';\

ARIZONA CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION (PHOENIX) and EEOC

State or local Agency, f any

NAME (indicate Mr, Mg or Mrs )

FOME FELEPHONE (inchude area codey

(480) 228-0986

Me. Tyrone Mernitt

STREET ADDRESS

CIUY, STATE AND ZIP CODE DATE OF BIRTH
1750 5. Alma School Rd, Apt. 103 Mesa, Arizona 85210 REDACTED

NAMED IS THE EMPLOYER, LABOR ORGANIZATION, EMPLOYMENT AGENCY, APPRENTICESHIP COMMITTEE, OR STATE OR
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY THAT I BELIEVE DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME OR OTHERS. (if more than one, list under PARTICULARS
below.)

NAME

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, MEMBERS TELEPHONE (include area code)
FedEx

500+ (602) 392-7290

STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE

COUNTY
3002 E. Old Tower Rd. Phoenix, Arizona 85034

CAUSE OF DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Check appropriate box{es)

DATE DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE

EARLIEST LATEST
W RACE 3 COLOR O SEX O RELIGION O NATIONAL ORIGIN

O RETALIATION O AGE O DISABILITY [ OTHER (specify) W CONTINUING ACTION
THE PARTICULARS ARE (If additional space is needed, attach extra sheet(s}):

(See attached}

L3

00T 16 TTw 2 530 P

. NOTARY -(Wh for Stat 1 Reqgut t
W [ want this charge filed with both the EEQC and the State or local Agency, if OTARY - (When necessary for State and Local Requirements)

any. [ will advise the agencies if [ change my address or telephone number and

cooperate fully with them in the processing of my charge in accordance with their
procedure.

1 swear or affirm that I have read the above charge and that it is true
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

_ [ 23 0 jvt’h*)w KM@H;

AVES SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DATE
Chalging Party (mgmluref (Day, month, and year)

SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT

362160.1



I am an African-American male. I was hired by FedEx to work in Memphis, Tennessee on
September 24, 1998. 1began with FedEx as a permanent part-time International Heavy Weight
Handler, an entry level position. In the Fall of 2001, 1 transferred from Memphis to Phoenix,
Anzona. [ made this move because | had been told that my chances of receiving a promotion
were higher working for FedEx in Arizona rather than in Tennessee. | have not received a
promotion to date and behieve that this is the case because of my race.

I was assigned the position of nighttime Handler on a permanent part-time basis in Phoenix.
This is an entry level position. My goal was to obtain a promotion to the position of Information
Agent or Courier. My ultimate goal was to enter Management at FedEx and I saw both the
Information Agent and Courier positions as stepping stones towards my ultimate goal.

I was informed by my manager Dan Welch that I would have to take the Basic Skills Test
(“BST”) in order to be eligible to apply for a promotion.

I took the BST on February 23, 2003 and failed it. It was my understanding that I could not take
the BST again for at least six months. I was very discouraged after failing the BST. I have a
college degree from The University of Phoenix in Electronic Business and do not understand
why 1 did not pass the BST. 1did not see any point in taking the exam again because I was told
by my manager Dan Welch that there was nothing I could do to prepare for it and I did not want
to fail it again.

Since having taken and failed the BST, there have been numerous postings for Courier and
Information Agent positions at the Phoenix Ramp where I work. [ would have applied for the
Courier positions were it not for my having failed the BST. Ibelieve that I would have received
one of these positions if I had passed the BST.

[ believe that I have been discriminated against by FedEx as part of its pattern and practice of
racially discriminating against African-American and Latino employees in promotions because:

1. I am qualified for a promotion to Courier, Ramp Transport Driver (RTD), or Customer
Service Agent but for my failure to pass the BST;

2. The BST is a cognitive ability test. It tests abilities related to few important job tasks,
and it does not test many abilities that are important for the jobs of Courier, RTD, and Customer
Service Agent; and

3. The BST has statistically significant adverse impact on African-Amencans and
Latinos. The adverse impact of the BST 1s extraordinarily large and disqualifies minority
applicants who are otherwise qualified for Courier, RTD, and Customer Service Agent jobs.
FedEx is aware of this statistically significant adverse impact. FedEx has disregarded its
obligation to validate the BST as 1t 1s used at FedEx, and to explore alternative selection methods
that would reduce or elimnate adverse impact.

In addition, I have applied for multiple promotions for which I believe 1 was qualified, but which
were denied me. For example, | have applied for a dispatcher position, material handler

CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION
FOR EYRONE MERRFTT
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position, and ramp agent position, none of which I received. Upon information and belief,
similarly situated white employees received these promotions over me.

I have also been subject to harsher discipline than similarly situated white colleagues of mine.
For instance, in approximately February of this year, I was reprimanded by my manager for a
“drop can” violation because a can containing packages fell from my dolly. Soon after I
received this reprimanded I am aware that two white colleagues of mine dropped cans from their
dollies, but they received no reprimands.

Because of FedEx’s racially biased disciplinary and evaluation policies and practices, I have
been denied fair compensation.

I bﬁng this charge on behalf of myself and similarly situated African-American and Latino
FedEx employees in FedEx’s Western Region who have been denied promotional opportunities,
been unfairly disciplined, and denied fair compensation as a result of their race.

I also believe that I have been subject to disparate treatment. Approximately six months ago, [
was denied leave without pay (“LLWOP”) while other white employees were permitted to take
LWOP. I bring this claim on behalf of myself only.

CHARGF, OF DISCRIMINATION
FOR TYRONF MERRITT
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